
 1 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2016 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

 

 Jennifer Ray, Mayor 

Robert Bergman, Council Member   Evans Phelps, Vice Mayor 

Terri Andersen, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 

each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 

local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 

advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  

Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 

distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 

City, CA during normal business hours. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 

AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 

questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 

to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 

opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 

YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 

you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 

delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   

 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

 

Roll Call:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Acknowledging March 2016 as DeMolay Month in Nevada City 

 

PRESENTATION:    

 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 

 

 
 



 2 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 

the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 

jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  

Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 

certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 

action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 

2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 

Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 

for separate discussion and action. 

 

A. Subject:  Amendment No. 1 to Nevada City Fire Department Employees Association 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Addition of the Classification Firefighter 

Recommendation: Review and approve Amendment No. 1 to the Nevada City Fire 

Department Employees Association MOU for the incorporation of the classification 

for a firefighter effective January 30, 2016. 

 

B. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – January 2016 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

C. Subject:  Award Contract for CCTV Sanitary Sewer Inspection Project 

Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX 1) Finding the project categorically 

exempt pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guideline §15306; 

and 2) Awarding a Contract in the Amount of $31,631.20 plus $3,000 contingencies 

to Nor-Cal Pipeline Services, Fairfield, CA for CCTV Sanitary Sewer Inspection and 

Authorizing Mayor to sign. 

 

      4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 

A. City Council Meeting – February 10, 2016 

 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

 

 

 



 3 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

A. Subject:  30Th Annual Spring Run Street Closure Request 

Recommendation:  Review and authorize 30th Annual Spring Run street closure 

request per application. 

 

B. Subject: Review of Community Economic Support Program Applications 

Recommendation:  Review proposals and provide guidance related to the funding 

requests and the amount of funding to incorporate into the Fiscal Year 2016/17 

budget. 

 

C. Subject:  Update on City of Nevada City June 2016 Ballot Measures 

Recommendation: Receive and file. If necessary and desired, designate author(s) of 

rebuttal argument for Measure X. 

 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 



 4 

 

Certification of Posting of Agenda 

I, Corey Shaver, Administrative Supervisor for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the 

February 24, 2016 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted February 19, 2016 at the office of 

the City of Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 

Signed this February 19, 2016 at Nevada City, California 

 

 

__________________________________, Corey Shaver, Administrative Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

 

 

March 9, 2016  Regular City Council Meeting 

March 23, 2016  Regular City Council Meeting 

March 31, 2016  Cesar Chavez Day Holiday – City Hall Closed 

April 13, 2016  Regular Council Meeting 

April 27, 2016  Regular Council Meeting 

 

NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 

remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 

while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

February 24, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Amendment No. 1 to the Nevada City Fire Department Employees 
Association Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Addition of the 
Classification Firefighter 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve Amendment No. 1 to the Nevada City Fire 
Department Employees Association MOU for the incorporation of the classification for a 
firefighter effective January 30, 2016. 
   
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
On January 17, 2016 the Council authorized the transition of three limited-term 
firefighter positions to full-time employees.  With this transition firefighters become 
eligible for City benefits and to become a part of the Nevada City Fire Department 
Employees Association. Currently the City has a MOU with the Nevada City Fire 
Department Employees Association that includes the classifications of Captain and 
Engineer necessitating the addition of the classification of firefighter so that they may 
receive the same benefits as the existing fire personnel.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

 Amendment No. 1 to Nevada City Fire Department Employees Association – 
Addition of the classification firefighter 

5

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY  

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager / Finance & Administration 

 
SUBJECT:   Nevada City Fire Department Employees Association  
 
DATE:   February 24, 2016 
 
 
The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) agreement No. 1 effective January 30, 2016 between the 
City of Nevada City and the Nevada City Fire Department Employees Association; 
 
Add the Classification of Firefighter:  Effective January 30, 2016 and upon the ratification of this 
amendment to the MOU effective July 1, 2014 the Nevada City Fire Department Employees Association 
MOU will be amended to include the classification of Firefighter. 
 
  
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Mark Prestwich, City Manager     Date 
 
 
 
 
Management Employees 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Dan Paulus        Date 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Kevin Cartzdafner       Date 
 
 
 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City, CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

February 24, 2016 
 

 
TITLE:  Award Contract for CCTV Sanitary Sewer Inspection Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX 1) Finding the project 
categorically exempt pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guideline §15306; and 2) Awarding a Contract in the Amount of $31,631.20 plus 
$3,000 contingencies to Nor-Cal Pipeline Services, Fairfield, CA for CCTV 
Sanitary Sewer Inspection and Authorizing Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  The City is responsible for operating and 
maintaining approximately 20 miles of sewer line and manholes that comprise 
the Wastewater Collection System.   The average age of the collection system is 
100+ years.  The City has rehabilitated many of the oldest pipelines but cannot 
feasibly replace all of the aging pipe system.   This proposed project consists of 
closed-circuit television (CCTV) sewer line inspection to identify pipe line defects 
for 2.8 miles of sewer line (approx. 15 % of entire system).   
 
City Staff advertised and received three bids and they are as follows: 
 

 Coastline Water Resources   $ 52,820.00 

 Express Sewer & Drain, Inc.   $ 49,148.00 

 Nor-Cal Pipeline Services    $ 31,631.20 
 
The proposed project is complimentary to the City’s ongoing work with Coastland 
Civil Engineering to identify and prioritize water and wastewater system needs 
and develop a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Once CCTV data is 
available, Coastland will review and identify any system deficiencies for 
incorporation into the CIP. It is also consistent with the City’s NCFORWARD 
Economic Plan that includes a focus on enhancing the City’s infrastructure. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The proposed CCTV work was incorporated into the current 
year Sewer Fund budget and adequate resources remain available to fund the 
project without a budget adjustment. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: The proposed contract involves 
assessing the condition of existing infrastructure to assist in planning and 
prioritizing needed replacement and/or reconstruction of the City’s sewer 
collection system. CEQA Guidelines §15306 provides a categorical exemption for 

13

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


data collection and resource evaluation activities which do not result in a serious 
or major disturbance to an environmental resource that are strictly for information 
gathering purposes.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 

 Resolution 2016-XX 

14



 

RESOLUTION 2016-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

FINDING THE PROJECT CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT PURSUANT TO CEQA AND 

AWARDING A CONTRACT TO NOR-CAL PIPELINE SERVICES, FAIRFIELD, CA 

FOR CCTV SANITARY SEWER INSPECTION AND AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN 

 

 

 WHEREAS, some of the City’s water and wastewater infrastructure used today is 
more than 100 years old and in need of replacement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City entered into an agreement with Coastland 
Civil Engineering, Inc. on July 8, 2015 to conduct a comprehensive Water and 
Wastewater System Condition Assessment and Operational Review; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the condition assessment of water and wastewater needs will help 
the City initiate development of a five-year water/wastewater Capital Improvement Plan 
to prioritize system investments and has been identified as a key City Council objective; 
and  
 

 WHEREAS, City staff advertised and received three bids for the project; and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Nevada City  
 
Section 1. Finds the project categorically exempt pursuant to California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guideline §15306; and  
 
Section 2. Awards a contract to Nor-Cal Pipeline Services, Fairfield, CA in the 
amount of $31,631.20 plus $3,000 contingencies and authorizes the Mayor to 
sign. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Nevada City 
City Council held on this 24th day of February, 2016 by the following vote: 

15



 
 

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jennifer Ray, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Niel Locke, City Clerk 

16



1  

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to 
Quick Links and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the 
screen.  Select the meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, 
please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

 
Consulting City Attorney DeGraw reported out of Closed Session for P. Scott Browne, Attorney to 
proceed with the appeal litigation involving the City in the case of Friends of Spring Street vs. Nevada 
City, et al, Nevada County Superior Court Case No. CU15-080911.  
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Present:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
PROCLAMATION:  None 
 
PRESENTATION:   None 
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevdacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevdacityca.gov 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
None 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject: Accounts Payable Activity Report – January 2016 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 
B. Subject: Sales Tax Report – 3rd Quarter 2015 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 
 

17

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevdacityca.gov/
http://www.nevdacityca.gov/


2  

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 10, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

C. Subject:  Award Contract for new Gas/Water Lines at the Nevada City Sewer Plant 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-08 to Award a Contract in the Amount of $133,767 plus 
$15,000 contingencies to CME Services, Grass Valley, CA for New Gas Line and Water Line at the 
Nevada City Sewer Plant and Authorize Mayor to Sign. 

 
D. Subject: Award of CABY Contract for the Clear and Grub of the Waterline along Maybert Road 

within the Washington Water District. 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX to Award a CABY Contract in the Amount of $12,789 
plus 5% contingencies to Robinson Enterprises, Inc., Nevada City to Clear & Grub along the Maybert 
Road Waterline in the Washington District and Authorize Mayor to sign. 

 
Consent Item D was removed from the agenda as it is not necessary for this item to be presented to the 
Council for approval as the Assistant City Manager has the authority to approve and sign the contract. 
 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Phelps to approve Consent Items A, B and C as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 

4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 
A. City Council Meeting – City Council Meeting – January 27, 2016 
B. Special City Council Meeting – February 2, 2016 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Phelps to approve the January 27, 2016 Minutes and 
February 2, 2016 Minutes as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
5.  DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
 A.  Subject: Presentation of Fiscal Year 2014/15 Financial Audit by the Independent Audit Firm of 

Smith & Newell – Norm Newell, CPA 
 
Accepted & Filed. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject: An Ordinance of the City Council of Nevada City, California, Adding Chapter 17.70 to 

the Nevada City Municipal Code Entitled “Formula Businesses Restrictions and Regulations” 
 
Action:  Motion by Andersen, seconded by Strawser to Adopt Ordinance 2016 Adding Chapter 17.70 
to the Nevada City Municipal Code Restricting and Regulating Formula Businesses. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
 

18



3  

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 10, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 
B. Subject:  Sugarloaf Mountain Master Plan 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Andersen to direct staff to file a Notice of Exemption with the 
Nevada County Clerk’s Office. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Phelps to adopt the Final Draft of the Sugarloaf Master Plan 
as written and to include that any trail proposal will include a parking plan. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Andersen to pass Resolution 2016-09 adopting the 
Sugarloaf Master Plan. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 

C. Subject:  Historic District Designated Smoking Area Receptacles and Signage 
Recommendations, no-smoking receptacles and associated signage for the City’s no-smoking 
ordinance. 

 

Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Strawser to approve implementation of staff compliance 
recommendations, receptacles and signage as presented with the following changes: 1) Relocate the 
Nevada Street parking lot smoking area to Spring Street parking lot area, 2) Relocate the Commercial 
Street parking lot water wheel smoking area to the bench. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject:  Sierra Roots Inclement Weather Shelter Request 

 
Council is satisfied with the current cold weather agreement in place but emphasized City Manager 
Prestwich has discretion to open a shelter upon extreme weather conditions. 
  
9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT – 9:03 pm 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

19



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

February 24, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  30th Annual Spring Run Street Closure Request  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize 30th Annual Spring Run street 
closure request per application. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On December 3, 2015, the City received an 
application for a street closure request for the 30th Annual Spring Run sponsored 
by the Nevada City United Methodist Church. The 5 and 10K run/walk event is 
planned for April 30. The following street closure is proposed: 
 

- Mill Street between Broad Street and Spring Street 
 
A summary of the specific event characteristics and recommended staff 
conditions are included in the application packet. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 Street Closure/Special Event Application 
 

 

20

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

February 24, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Review of Community and Economic Support Program Applications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review proposals and provide guidance related to the funding 
requests and the amount of funding to incorporate into the Fiscal Year 2016/17 budget. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  In September 2015, the City Council approved a 
Community and Economic Support Program to integrate periodic community requests for 
funding each January into the City’s annual budget development process. This approach 
was intended to facilitate the City Council’s ability to identify and prioritize budget 
appropriations for these requests while considering available resources. 

Consistent with the program’s policy (attached), the City placed a Request for Proposals 
on its website soliciting proposals through January 31 for one-time sponsorships and 
grants for community programs promoting Nevada City commerce and business activity. 
The application (attached) emphasized that the City’s support of an outside organization 
should be considered a temporary or one-time commitment with the expectation that the 
event/project and, if applicable, have a plan to become self-sustaining.  

Applicants were notified that the City anticipated budgeting approximately $5,000 for this 
program in Fiscal Year 2016/17. The application recommended proposals target support 
requests between $250 and $1,000, and noted that submission of an application was not 
a guarantee of funding. Four applications totaling $4,756.94 were submitted to the City 
for Community and Economic Support Program funding: 

PROJECT NAME DESCRIPTION SUBMITTED BY AMOUNT 
REQUESTED 

Update of Historic 
Nevada City Tourist 

Map 

Nevada City Chamber of 
Commerce has arranged with 
Bob Crabb to update an old 
Nevada City Tourist Map. 

Nevada City 
Chamber of 
Commerce 

 

$1,000.00 

7-Hills Sign 
Replacement Project 

Replace decaying 7-Hills 
Business District Sign. 

Nevada City 
Chamber of 
Commerce 

 

$1,756.94 

Enhancement of 
Nevada City Volunteer 

Fire Department 
History 

Purchase and installation of 
two display cases to house 
Volunteer Fire Department 
artifacts at Fire Station No. 1 

Nevada County 
Historical Society 

 

$1,000.00 

Providence Spur Trail 
Improvement Project 

Develop 750 foot section of 
poorly maintained trail. 

Sierra Streams 
Institute 

 

$1,000.00 

31

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Staff has reviewed the applications and confirmed they meet program goals and eligibility 
guidelines. The attached applications include additional narrative for the proposals. 

Staff is recommending the City Council review the proposals and provide guidance 
related to the funding requests and the amount of funding to incorporate into the Fiscal 
Year 2016/17 budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: City staff will work with the City Council to incorporate 
desired funding into the Fiscal Year 2016/17 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

 FY 2016/17 Community and Economic Support Program Application 
 Community and Economic Support Program Policy 
 Funding Applications: 

o Historic Nevada City Tourist Map 
o 7-Hills Sign Replacement  
o Enhancement of Volunteer Fire Department History 
o Providence Spur Trail Improvement 

 

32



 

City of Nevada City 

FY 2016/17 COMMUNITY ECONOMIC SUPPORT PROGRAM APPLICATION 

 

Submit application to:  Nevada City Hall 

    Attn. City Manager 

    317 Broad Street 

    Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

PROCESS AND INSTRUCTIONS 

The City of Nevada City established a Community Economic Support Program to provide 

funding for special events, marketing activities, or other economic development-related 

activities providing a public benefit to the City. 

 

The primary purpose of the Program is to provide one-time sponsorships and grants that 

promote the City of Nevada City’s commerce and increase business activity to help achieve the 

following goals: 
 

 Promotion and marketing of Nevada City 

 Support of community events 

 Enhance education 

 Improve aesthetics of a commercial area 

 Improve the perception and/or practice of the City as business friendly 

In almost all cases, the City’s support of an outside organization should be considered a 

temporary or one-time commitment. Does your organization or event have a plan to become 

financially self-sustaining? 

 

Applications will be accepted during the month of January 2016. Awards are anticipated to be 

made by July 1, 2016 upon annual budget approval for the July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 fiscal 

year. Based on prior year budget resources, it is anticipated the City will budget a total of 

$5,000 in Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for this program. Therefore, it is recommended that proposals 

target support of between $250 and $1,000.  

 

Please note that submission of an application is not a guarantee of funding. Incomplete 

applications may be disqualified from consideration. The City reserves the right to request 

additional information within a prescribed time frame as part of its review process.  

 

Please refer all questions regarding this application to Mark Prestwich, City Manager, at (530) 

265-2496, ext. 119 or mark.prestwich@nevadacityca.gov. 

  
33

mailto:mark.prestwich@nevadacityca.gov


Part One – General Information 

Organization Name:  Project Name: 

Address: 
 

Contact Person 
(Name/Title): 

 

 
Contact Email: 

 

 
Contact Telephone: 

 

 
Website: 

 

 

Amount of Funding Requested: 

 

 

Part Two – Project Specifics 

DIRECTIONS: Please prepare and attach a narrative of your proposed use of Community 

Economic Support Program funds that addresses each of the topics below: 

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  Provide a brief and clear description of your proposed use of 

the City’s Economic Development Fund, including a description of the specific public 

benefit to Nevada City including but not limited to: dates, time period, etc. (no more 

than 2 pages).  Identify if your request is for a grant or sponsorship.  

 

B. PROGRAM PURPOSE:  Please describe how your proposed use of funds meets one or 

more of the following program goals: 

 Promotion and marketing of Nevada City 

 Support of community events  

 Enhance education 

 Improve aesthetics of a commercial area 

 Improve the perception and/or practice of the City as business friendly 
 

C. SCHEDULE:  If applicable, provide a schedule indicating when funds will be needed. 

CERTIFICATION:  I certify the proposed use of City funds will only be used for what has been 

outlined in this application.  

 

              

Signature       Date 

 34



City of Nevada City  

Community and Economic Support Program (CESP) 

 

The City of Nevada City’s Community and Economic Support Program (CESP) provides funding for special 

events, marketing activities or other economic development-related activities providing a public benefit 

to the City. The primary purpose of the Program is to provide sponsorships and grants that promote the 

City of Nevada City’s commerce and increase business activity to help achieve the following goals: 

 Promotion and marketing of Nevada City 

 Support of community events 

 Enhance education  

 Improve aesthetics of a commercial area 

 Improve the perception and/or practice of the City as business friendly 

Applications will be accepted during the month of January. Awards will be made upon annual budget 

approval. The CESP will receive an annual allocation, established by the City Council. Any funds not used 

during the fiscal year will be returned to the General Fund.  The City Council reserves the right to 

consider other non-timely applications should a need arise. 

APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY 

A. Eligible Applicants include the following: 

a. Business associations 

b. Individual businesses 

c. Non-profit organizations 

d. Nevada City Chamber of Commerce 

e. Economic-development related organizations or efforts that meet program goals 

B. Ineligible Applicants: 

a. Individual residents 

b. Neighborhood associations 

PROJECT ELIGIBILITY 

A. Eligible Projects include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. Event sponsorships 

b. Grants for marketing and promotion 

c. Studies to further economic development 

d. Economic development-related activities that promote program goals 

B. Ineligible Projects include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. General operation costs, including maintenance and payroll 

b. Cost of internal events, such as luncheons 

c. City membership dues 

d. Unpermitted events 

APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

A. By each January 1, the City shall provide notice on its website and announce at a public meeting 

a call for CESP proposals. 

B. Applicant shall complete and submit the City’s application by January 31. 

C. City staff shall review and evaluate each application based on eligibility requirements and 

funding criteria. 35



D. City staff or City Council may request follow-up information from the applicant to complete 

evaluation of the application. Applicant shall provide the requested information by the date 

designated. 

E. City Council shall prioritize funding requests based on funding availability and determine 

amount and number of awards as part of its annual budget adoption process.  

F. Upon approval by the City Council, the Applicant shall submit to the City a Request for Funds. 

G. Upon receipt of the Request for Funds, staff shall distribute the funds to the Applicant within 

ten (10) business days. 

 

 

36



 
 
January 30, 2016 
 
Mark Prestwich 
City Manager 
Nevada City CA 
 
Dear Mark: 
 
Thank you for the idea of updating the Nevada City Tourist map, an old copy of 
which you un-earthed!  Our intention is to have it updated by a local artist in both 
print and web-ready formats so it is as widely available to our visitors as possible. 
 
We have arranged with Bob Crabb to take on the artistic portion of the project, and 
Mike Byrne will be project lead for the Chamber and liaison with Mr. Crabb. 
 
We are requesting a grant under the NC CESP of $1000.00 to commission the artistic 
portion of the project.  We feel that this project meets all of the criteria in section B 
of the application and intend to commence as soon as the application may be 
approved and the funds available. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
NEVADA CITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 

 
Paul Sieving 
Past President 2015 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

February 24, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Update on City of Nevada City June 2016 Ballot Measures  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. If necessary and desired, designate 
author(s) of rebuttal argument for Measure X. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar 
of Voters has issued a Notice of Election (attached) for the June 7, 2016 
Presidential Primary Election. Nevada City voters will be decide the outcome of 
two City measures: 
 

MEASURE X: THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY   
“To facilitate initiation of customer-friendly online transactions and simplify administration 
while keeping rates affordable, shall the City of Nevada City simplify its 59-year-old Business 
License Tax which provides revenues for municipal purposes by reducing rate methodologies 
from more than 30 to 2 with a lower maximum annual tax of $150 on large businesses and 
$100 on smaller businesses, subject to annual adjustments for inflation and required 
independent financial audits?”  
 
MEASURE Y: THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY  
“Shall the recently enacted hosted short-term rental regulations resulting from adoption by 
the City Council of Nevada City of a prior voter initiative (effective January 8, 2016) be 
repealed and replaced with the more restrictive provisions of an alternative voter initiative 
permitting on-line type home-sharing short-term rentals of two units in a single-family 
residence or small guest house only if the owner occupies the main dwelling and off-street 
parking is provided and making related General Plan amendments?”  

 
Should there be a Primary Argument filed for Measure X, the City Council has 
the discretion to designate an author(s) of a rebuttal argument. Primary 
arguments are due February 19th at 5:00pm so it is not known at the time this 
report was prepared whether a Primary Argument in opposition to Measure X will 
have been filed. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 

 Nevada County Notice of Election  
 

52

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 NOTICE OF ELECTION 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, BY GREGORY J. DIAZ, THE NEVADA COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER/REGISTRAR OF VOTERS, OF A 
PRESIDENTIAL PRIMARY ELECTION. NOTICE OF CENTRAL COUNTING LOCATION. NOTICE OF LAST DAY TO REGISTER TO 
VOTE. NOTICE OF VOTE-BY-MAIL BALLOTS ISSUED. NOTICE OF RANDOMIZED ALPHABET DRAWING. NOTICE OF THE 
SELECTION OF PRECINCTS FOR THE MANUAL TALLY OF BALLOTS TO BE CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE 
LAW.  NOTICE OF OFFICES FOR WHICH CANDIDATES ARE TO BE ELECTED AND DATES WITHIN WHICH DECLARATIONS 
OF CANDIDACY MAY BE FILED. NOTICE OF MEASURES TO BE VOTED ON AT THE PRESIDENTIAL PRIMARY ELECTION 
AND DATES WITHIN WHICH ARGUMENTS AND REBUTTAL ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGAINST THE PROPOSED MEASURES 
MUST BE FILED WITH THE NEVADA COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER/REGISTRAR OF VOTERS. 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by Gregory J. Diaz, Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters, in accordance with 
the provisions of the Elections Laws of the State of California, that on June 7, 2016, there will be a Presidential 
Primary Election. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that at the Presidential Primary Election candidates will be nominated or elected to the 
following offices: 
 
UNITED STATES PARTISAN OFFICES 
President and Vice President of the United States 
For qualifications and requirements visit http://www.sos.ca.gov/elections/. 
 
FEDERAL VOTER-NOMINATED OFFICES 
U.S. Senate (Barbara Boxer, Incumbent) 
U.S. Representative in Congress, District 1, (Doug LaMalfa, Incumbent) 
U.S. Representative in Congress, District 4, (Tom McClintock, Incumbent) 
 
STATE LEGISLATIVE VOTER-NOMINATED OFFICES 
California State Assembly, District 1 (Brian Dahle, Incumbent) 
California State Senate, District 1 (Ted Gaines, Incumbent) 
 
COUNTY NONPARTISAN OFFICES 
Nevada County Supervisor, District 1, (Nate Beason, Incumbent) 
Nevada County Supervisor, District 2, (Ed Scofield, Incumbent) 
Nevada County Supervisor, District 5, (Richard Anderson, Incumbent) 
Superior Court Judge, (Candace S. Heidelberger, Incumbent) 
 
MUNICIPAL NONPARTISAN OFFICES 
Nevada City, City Council (Terri Andersen, Incumbent) 
Nevada City, City Council (Jennifer Ray, Incumbent) 
Nevada City, City Council (Robert Bergman, Incumbent) 
Nevada City, City Clerk (Niel Locke, Incumbent) 
 
COUNTY CENTRAL COMMITTEE PARTISAN OFFICES 
Democratic Central Committee, District 1 – District 5 
Republican Central Committee, District 1 – District 5 
 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that official Nomination Petitions and Declarations of Candidacy for eligible candidates 
desiring to file for the offices listed above are available beginning February 16, 2016, from the Nevada County 
Elections Office at 950 Maidu Avenue, Suite 210 in Nevada City, CA 95959, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., excluding holidays. Candidate filing will also be available at Truckee Town Hall, 10183 Truckee 
Airport Road, Truckee, CA 96161. Appointments are recommended if filing with the Town of Truckee. Candidates 

53

http://www.sos.ca.gov/elections/


may obtain more information by calling Nevada County Elections at 530-265-1298 or 1-888-395-1298. Candidates 
for the City of Nevada City must obtain and file their Nomination Petitions and Declarations of Candidacy with the 
City Clerk of Nevada City and may contact the Nevada City City Clerk’s office at 530-265-4452 for more 
information. 
 
The Declaration of Candidacy must be filed by 5:00 p.m. March 11, 2016, at the Elections Office or Truckee Town 
Hall.  Declarations of Candidacy will not be accepted after 5:00 p.m. on March 11, 2016, unless the incumbent 
does not file. In the event that the incumbent does not file, the filing deadline is extended five days to 5:00 p.m. 
March 16, 2016, for anyone other than the incumbent.  This extension does not apply to judicial candidates, as 
they must file Declarations of Intention earlier and the extension applies at that time. 
 
A “Candidate’s Handbook” detailing deadlines, candidates’ qualifications and candidate filing requirements for 
the June 7, 2016, Presidential Primary Election is available at the Elections Office and online at 
www.mynevadacounty.com/nc/elections.  
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that at the Presidential Primary Election the following measures will be put to a vote of 
qualified voters in the district: 
 
MEASURE W: COUNTY OF NEVADA 
 “Shall an ordinance be adopted which (a) bans outdoor cultivation, commercial cultivation and other commercial 
cannabis activities, (b) limits indoor cultivation to 12 plants per parcel in residential and rural areas, (c) prohibits 
indoor marijuana cultivation in unpermitted structures and areas used or intended for human occupancy, and (d) 
allows marijuana cultivation only by qualified patients and primary caregivers and only for medicinal purposes?” 
 
Yes   _____ 
No    _____ 
                
 
MEASURE X: THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
 “To facilitate initiation of customer-friendly online transactions and simplify administration while keeping rates 
affordable, shall the City of Nevada City simplify its 59-year-old Business License Tax which provides revenues for 
municipal purposes by reducing rate methodologies from more than 30 to 2 with a lower maximum annual tax of 
$150 on large businesses and $100 on smaller businesses, subject to annual adjustments for inflation and 
required independent financial audits?” 
 
Yes   _____ 
No    _____ 
 
 
MEASURE Y: THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
 “Shall the recently enacted hosted short-term rental regulations resulting from adoption by the City Council of 
Nevada City of a prior voter initiative (effective January 8, 2016) be repealed and replaced with the more 
restrictive provisions of an alternative voter initiative permitting on-line type home-sharing short-term rentals of 
two units in a single-family residence or small guest house only if the owner occupies the main dwelling and off-
street parking is provided and making related General Plan amendments?” 
 
Yes   _____ 
No    _____ 
 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that any person may access the full text of measures W, X and Y on the county 
website at the following address: www.mynevadacounty.com/nc/elections. 
 

54

http://www.mynevadacounty.com/nc/elections
http://www.mynevadacounty.com/nc/elections


 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that any written arguments for or against the measures to be submitted to the voters 
must be filed with the Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters no later than 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 
February 19, 2016.  Arguments must be signed and dated by the author(s) with a Statement of Accuracy per 
Election Code § 9600.  Arguments shall not exceed 300 words. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that when the Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters has selected the 
direct arguments for and against said measures, the Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters shall 
send copies of the argument in favor of said measures to the author(s) of the argument against and copies of the 
argument against to the author(s) of the argument in favor.  
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that rebuttal arguments shall not exceed 250 words and must be filed with the 
Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters no later than 5:00 p.m. Friday, February 26, 2016, with a 
Statement of Accuracy per Elections Code § 9600.  
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN there will be a 10-calendar-day public examination period of proposed ordinances, 
measures and arguments commencing Monday, February 29, 2016, thru Thursday, March 9, 2016, during which 
a qualified voter of the jurisdiction may seek a writ of mandate or an injunction requiring any or all of the 
materials to be amended or deleted.  The writ of mandate or injunction request shall be filed no later than the 
end of the 10-calendar-day public examination period. 
 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the randomized alphabet drawing for Nevada County will commence on March 
17, 2016, at the Nevada County Elections Office.  
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the last day to register to vote in the June 7, 2016, Presidential Primary is May 
23, 2016. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that at the Presidential Primary Election the polls will be open from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 
p.m. on June 7, 2016. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that after the polls close on the date of said election, ballots will be tallied at the 
Nevada County Elections Office and Truckee Town Hall.  The voted ballots will be moved from each polling place 
to be stored at the Nevada County Elections Office and Truckee Town Hall. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that per Elections Code § 15104, the Registrar of Voters also hereby notifies all 
interested organizations that the verifying of signatures on vote-by-mail ballots cast for the Presidential Primary 
Election will commence on May 9, 2016, or at any time thereafter in the Nevada County Elections Office. On May 
24, 2016, or at any time thereafter, the opening and processing of vote-by-mail ballots will commence.  This 
process will continue until all election results are tabulated and the election is certified.  Any member of the 
County Grand Jury, and any other interested organization, shall be permitted to observe and challenge the 
manner in which the vote-by-mail ballots are handled, from the processing of ballot return envelopes through 
the opening, counting and disposition of the ballots. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the canvass will commence at 8:00 a.m. on June 9, 2016, at the Nevada County 
Elections Office. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN, in accordance with provisions of the Election Laws of the State of California, that on 
June 9, 2016, at 10:00 a.m. the Nevada County Elections Office will randomly select precincts for a manual tally 
of one percent of the precincts casting ballots at the June 7, 2016, Presidential Primary Election. This random 
selection of precincts will take place at the Nevada County Elections Office and is open to the public. 
 

55

ssjoberg
Highlight

ssjoberg
Highlight



NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on June 13, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. the Nevada County Elections office will begin a 
manual tally of one percent of the precincts casting ballots at the June 7, 2016, Presidential Primary Election.  
This manual tally is open to the public and shall continue daily (Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays excluded unless 
otherwise decided by the County Registrar of Voters) until completed. 
 
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that for directions or information regarding the manual tally, interested persons may 
call the Nevada County Elections Office at 530-265-1298 or 1-888-395-1298. The Elections Office website can be 
found at www.mynevadacounty.com/nc/elections. 
 
Gregory J. Diaz 
Nevada County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters 
February 11, 2016 
 

56

http://www.mynevadacounty.com/nc/elections

	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 02.24.16.pdf
	3A-1 SR 2-24-16 NC Fire Dept. Association Amendment No. 1
	3A-2 NC Fire Department Association Amendment No. 1
	3B-1 Fire Activity Report - January 2016
	3C-1 Award Contract to Nor-Cal Pipeline Service for CATV Sewer Inspection 2.24.16
	3C-2 Reso - Award contract for CCTV Sanitary Sewer Inspection Project
	4A-1 Minutes 02.10.2016.Draft
	8A-1 Methodist Church 5K Street Closure Request
	8A-2 Street Closure Request - April 30th Run
	8B-1-Community Support Program Applications
	8B-2 FY 2016-17 Application for Econ Support Program
	8B-3 Community and Econ Support Program Policy
	8B-4 Nevada City Tourist Map
	8B-5 Cover Letter Crabb Map update application.pdf
	8B-6 NC CESP Application - City Map Update
	8B-6 NC Tourist Map
	8B-7 St Augustine Sample

	8B-5 7-Hills Sign Replacement
	8B-6 Enhancement of NC Volunteer Fire Department History
	8B-7 Providence Spur Trail Improvement Project
	8C-1 Update on June 2016 Ballot Measures
	8C-2 Notice of Election June 2016



